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OBC Approved 03-25-2015 

 
 

 
 

Travel Report for: Tehassi tasi Hill  Lisa Liggins 
Brandon Yellowbird-Stevens 

Jennifer Webster 
Kirby Metoxen 

Travel Event: Mohegan Nation Council to Council Meeting 

Travel Location: Uncasville, CT 

Departure Date: 05/13/2024 Return Date: 05/16/2024 

Projected Cost: $1701.50 Actual Cost: $1,278.70 

Date Travel was Approved by OBC: 02/28/2024 

Narrative/Background: 
In September 2023, the Mohegan Tribe Chairman and Attorney General visited the 
Oneida Nation. After the visit, Chairman Gessner reached out to Chairman Hill to 
request a Council-to-Council meeting hosted by the Mohegan Tribe.  Chairman 
Gessner was very impressed with the Oneida Nation’s offerings of programs and 
services to the membership. They communicated a desire to learn more about Oneida 
Nation’s housing programs, Bay Bancorporation Inc., Comprehensive Health, Self-
Governance, and Grants.  In addition to the BC, attendees included: Melinda J. 
Danforth, Intergovernmental Affairs Director; Danelle Wilson, Executive Assistant; 
Debra Danforth, Comprehensive Health Operations Division Director; David Larson, 
Continuum of Care Director; Michelle Hill, Residential Sales & Realty Area Manager, 
Krystal John, Attorney. 

The Mohegan Tribe is a sovereign, federally-recognized Indian tribe situated with a 
reservation in Southeastern Connecticut. The Mohegan Nation’s Tribal Council is a 
nine (9) person elected council, with staggered terms. They also have an elected 
seven (7) person Council of Elders with staggered terms. See attached fact sheet for 
more information. 

https://www.mohegan.nsn.us/ 
https://library.municode.com/tribes_and_tribal_nations/mohegan_tribe/codes/code
_of_laws  
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Approve the travel request - Treasurer Lawrence Barton - Native American Finance Officer's Association...Approve the travel request - Treasurer Lawrence Barton - Native American Finance Officer's Association...
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6. Supporting Documents:

D Bylaws D Fiscal Impact Statement D Presentation 

D Contract Document(s) D Law D Report 

IZJ Correspondence D Legal Review D Resolution 

D Draft GTC Notice D Minutes D Rule (adoption packet) 

0 Draft GTC Packet 0 MOU/MOA D Statement of Effect 

D E-poll results/back-up D Petition IZJ Travel Documents 

D Other: Describe

7. Budget Information:

IZJ Budgeted - Tribal Contribution D Budgeted - Grant Funded 

0 Not Applicable D Unbudgeted

D Other: Describe

8. Submission:

Authorized Sponsor: Larry Barton, Treasurer 
-�- - - - - - - - - - - -------

Primary Requestor: (Name, Title/Entity) 
�-----�-- - - - - - - - - - --

Revised: 08/25/2023 Page 2 of 2 
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Oneida Nation 
Oneida Business Committee 

PO Box 365 • Oneld,1, WI 5•1155-0365 
onefda-nsn.gov 

�

ONEIDA 

Memorandum 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Oneida Business Committee 

Larry Barton, Treasurer 

May 30, 2024 

Travel Request for NAFOA Annual Conference - September 22-25, 
2024 

The Native American Finance Officers Association ( NAFOA) is holding their Annual Fall 
Conference in San Diego, CA. 

As Treasurer, I am the Nation's primary representative to this entity and am requesting 
approval to attend NAFOA's 2024 Annual Fall Finance & Economies Conference. 

Thank you. 

Page 1 of 1 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 
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Oneida Business Committee Travel Request 

1. OBC Meeting Date Requested: 06 I 12 / 24 D e-poll requested

2. General Information:

Event Name: NAFOA Fall Conference 
-----------------------------------

Event Location: San Diego, CA 

Departure Date: �' ___ S_ e_p_t _em_b _e _r _2 2_ ,_2_0 _2 _4 __ � 

Return Date: September 25, 2024 

3. Budget Information:

[8] Funds available in individual travel budget(s) 
D Unbudgeted 

[8] Grant Funded or Reimbursed 

4. Justification:

Describe the justification of this Travel Request: 

NAFOA Fall Conference 

Attendee(s): I Larry Barton 
� -----------------' 

Attendee(s): 

Attendee(s): 
� ------- -- --------' 

Cost Estimate: $5,720.00 

Native American Finance Officers Association (NAFOA) is an independent national non-profit organization 
providing for the advancement of independent and culturally-vibrant American Indian and Alaska Native 
communities by promoting excellence in financial management, advocating sound economic and fiscal policy, 
developing innovative education initiatives, and providing essential information, resources, and support to meet 
the challenges of economic growth and change. 

The Treasurer is the Nation's primary representative to this entity and is requesting approval to attend the Native 
American Finance Officers Association (NAFOA) 2024 annual Fall Finance & Economies Conference. 

S. Submission

Sponsor: ,-la---;7��-4-,.-,,·��-�----..... --------------------� 
1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2 ) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.
3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Form approved by OBC on 03/25/2015 
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ONEIDA NATION 

TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

General Travel Information 

Name of Traveler Larry Barton 
Le al name as it a ears on Travelers Driver's License or State ID, no nicknames 

Employee Number 

Destination City San Diego, CA 

Departure date 09/22/2024 Return date 09/25/2024 

Purpose of travel NAFOA Fall Conference 

Charged GL Account 

GSA (General Services Administration) Rates are linked on SharePoint under Employee Resources 

I Per Diem rate per day (meals) $ 194.00 

Cost Estimate Information 

Personal Automobile Mileage Expenses 

Total miles I Multiply by the MileaQe rate $.625 I $ 0.00 
Description Rate Factor Days Total 

Per Diem for initial travel date $ 194.00 0.75 1 $ 145.50 
Per Diem full day at destination $ 194.00 1.00 02 $ 388.00 
Per Diem for return travel date $ 194.00 0.75 1 $ 145.50 
Included meals total 
Miscellaneous expenses: taxi, 
parkinQ, fees, etc. . 

Sub-Total= Travel Advance $ 679.00 

Lodging including room, taxes, fees, $ 289.00 4 $1,156.00 
and hotel parking 

Airfare $700.00 
LuggaQe Fees $ 75.00 
Car Rental $ 200:00 
Registration $ 500.00 
AllowRble nrice adiustment $ 500.00 

Sub-Total = Virtual Card $3,131.00 
Total Cost Estimate $ 3 810.00 

I understand this advance will be deducted from my claim for reimbursement of actual travel expenses. 
I also understand that if this advance in not cleared within 10 calendar days after my travel return date, 
the Nation has the authority to withhold any advanced funds from future wages. 

Signatures/ Approvals 
Signature Date 

Traveler 

Supervisor 

Send all travel related items to: CentralAccounting_ Travel@oneidanation.org 
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5/30/24, 9:23 AM Conference I NAFOA 

2024 Fall Finance and Tribal Economies 

Conference 

September 23-24,2024 

The NAFOA Conference gathers semiannually in the Spring for our Annual Conference and the Fall for the 

Fall Finance & Tribal Economies Conference to discuss the current trends in tribal economic development 

and share resources with tribal financial professionals. 

n 

SPONSORSHIP 
OPPORTUNITIES 

i'IAFOA invif e,; corn111unily 111P111!iers to s1 d1mit propo•s,ils f'/J1· ses•;io11•; at our upcoming 2024 F .111 rin;ince 1.:, Tribal 

Eronornics ConfcrcncE• 1,11<ing place <;1;ple111IH'I' '2'.1·2� At the Hilto11 Sa11 Diego 13�yfront in S:111 Diq;o, CA 

VVe Villue tile expel'lise anrl imiglit:; ul' (IUI' dive1 se con1mu11ity in sli,1pi11g the confe1 PIKe arc,e1Kl,1. Yrib:ll le:lckr:;, 

industry (::<J>Nls, :111d 01 l1cl':, wil 11 knc,wk:dg(: ;;1,d cxp<'ricnu, in hili,cil n1 1a11cQ, economic dcvdopn,c:nt, ,,11<1 nd;il:1:d 

c11 c\JS die encour;::iged lo :.,ulJ111il ll 1L�ir idc;_is, 

Sul1rililling :1 prnpo:;,1! tlo,:c; 1101 gll.'l\'a11(u:you1· :,c:,sinn will Ile sc,lu:r,:d. Propos:1!•; will 111Hi<J1·c:u ,1 tl\nrnugh cv;il1u1.i"11 

by tl1e N,i\FO/� lec1111 lu e11:,ure lk1l llie se!(cCi.ed sc:s:;iu11•; ,1<Jd1 es:; lhe v,11 ied ll<eed•:: ;111cl i11tere:;ts within ou1 

co111nH111i\ y. Noi.if'ic;ilion will lw sc:111 only lo die i11divicl1.1,1!'.: whn'.;e '.;,•ssio1is ;11·,, sclcclcd fell· lhe co11k�re1 ice. If yuu1· 

prnpos�I is ,Krnpted, t,J;\F0/1 will comcli11:1\.e ,,ml finalize tl1e :;ession details 

Pi npo:,:,I D1rnlli11e: .. h111<" 'I'/, ?0',111 :-11:.'.:,:0011.rn. E;i•;tem ·1 line 

Nnlillcilli•lll of /\nTpic111n-•: .July :I, 20?11 

SUBMIT A SESSION PROPOSAL 

Registration Fees 

https://nafoa.org/conference/ 1 /11 
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Business Committee Agenda Request 

1. Meeting Date Requested: 06/12/24 

2. Session:

IZ] Open D Executive -must qualify under §107.4-1. 
Justification: Jennifer Webster Self Governance (IHS-TSGAC) 

3. Requested Motion:

IZ] Accept as information; OR 

Approve Travel - Jennifer Webster Self Governance (IHS-TSGAC) Washington, DC July 
22, 2024-July 24, 2024 

4. Areas potentially impacted or affected by this request:

D Finance D Programs/Services 

0 Law 'Office • 0 DTS 

D Gaming/Retail D Boards, Committees, or Commissions 

IZ] Oth�r.· Self Governance (IHS­
TSGAC) 

5. Additional attendees needed for this request:
Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Revised: 08/25/2023 Page 1 of 2 

Approve the travel request - Councilwoman Jennifer Webster - Indian Health Services Tribal Self...Approve the travel request - Councilwoman Jennifer Webster - Indian Health Services Tribal Self...
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6. Supporting Documents:

D Bylaws 

D Contract Document(s) 

D Correspondence 

D Draft GTC Notice 

0 Draft GTC Packet 

D Fi.seal Impact Statement 

D Law 

D Legal Review 

D Minutes 

0 MOU/MOA 

D E-poll results/back�up .D Petition 

IZ! Other:· Self Governance (I HS-TSGAC) 

7. Budget ·Information:

D Presentation 

D Report 

D Resolution 

D Rule (adoption packet) 

D Statement of Effect 

1Z! Travel Documents 

D Budge,ted•-: Triba[Contribution •

0 Uribudgeted

1Z! Budgeted - Grant Funded 

0 Not Applicable 

D Other:· SpecialF>rqjects

8. Submission:

Auth9rized 1Sp.onsor: Jennifer Webster, Councilwoman 

P.rimaryRequestor: _.;_(N_a_m_ e
--=-
' _T_itl_e!i_E_n_ti--"-ty=-1 ___ _ _ _ ______ _

Revised: 08/25/2023 Page 2 of 2 
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Oneida Business Committee Travel Request 

1. OBC Meeting Date Requested: 6 I 12 / 24 D e-poll requested

2. General Information:

Event Name: 

Event Location: Washington DC 

Self Governance Meeting (IHS-TSGAC) 

Attendee(s): !Jennifer Webster 

Departure Date: �I ____ Ju_ l_y _2_2,_ 2_0_2 _4 ___ �

Return Date: July 24, 2024 

3. Budget Information:

lg] Funds available in individual travel budget(s) 
D Unbudgeted 

lg] Grant Funded or Reimbursed 

4. Justification:

Describe the justification of this Travel Request: 

Attendee(s): 

Attendee(s): 

Cost Estimate: $ 1756.50 ( Reimbursed ) 

Council Member Jennifer Webster- Indian Health Service's Tribal Self - Governance Advisory Committee Meeting. 
Washington, DC 

July 23 (all day) 
July 24 (am only) 

The Indian Health,Services (IHS) Tribal Self Governance Advisory Committee (TSGAC) provides a form for Tribal 
and Federal officials to discuss issues related to Tribal Administration of Federal programs and services, exchange 
ideas, and develop solutions intended to improve Self-Governance and enhance the Tribal-Federal partnership. 

Al I travel expenses. are reimbursed. 

5. Submission
r------------------------------------, 

Sponsor: 
�-------------------------- - - - ----� 

1) Save a copy of this form for your records.
2 )  Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.
3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Form approved by OBC on 03/25/2015 
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ONEIDA NATION 
TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

General Travel Information 

Name of Traveler Jennifer Webster 
Le al name as it a pears on Travelers Driver's License or State ID, no nicknames 

Employee Number 

Destination City Washington DC 

Departure date 07/22/2024 Return date 07/24/2024 

Purpose of travel Self Govermance Mtg (IHS-TSGAC) 

Charged GL Account 
GSA (General Services Administration) Rates are linked on SharePoint under Employee Resources 

I Per Diem rate per day (meals) $ 79.00 

Cost Estimate Information 

Personal Automobile Mileage Expenses 
Total miles I Multiply by the MileaQe rate 

Description Rate Factor
Per Diem for initial travel date $ 79.00 0.75 
Per Diem full day at destination $ 79.00 1.00 
Per Diem for return travel date $ 79.00 0.75 
Included meals total 
Miscellaneous expenses: taxi, 
parkinq, fees, etc. 

$.625 
Davs 

1 
1 
1 

Sub-Total= Travel Advance 

Lodging including room, taxes, fees, 
and hotel parking 
Airfare 
Luggage Fees 
Car Rental 
Registration 
Allowable nrice adiustment 

Sub-Total= Virtual Card 
Total Cost Estimate 

I $ 0.00 
Total 

$ 59.25 
$ 79.00 
$ 59.25 
$1.00 

$ 196.50 

$ 0.00 

$1,000.00 
$ 60.00 
$ 0.00 
$ 0.00 

$ 500.00 
$1,560.00 
$1,756.50 

I understand this advance will be deducted from my claim for reimbursement of actual travel expenses. 
I also understand that if this advance in not cleared within 10 calendar days after my travel return date, 
the Nation has the authority to withhold any advanced funds from future wages. 

Si natures I A 
Date 

Traveler 

Su ervisor 

Send all travel related items to: CentralAccounting_ Travel@oneidanation.org 
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TSGAC/SGAC Advisory Committee Meetings 

July 23, 2024 @ 8:00 am - July 25, 2024 @ 5:00 pm CDT 

July 23rd TSGAC (IHS) All Day 

July 24th TSGAC (IHS) Morning 

July 24th SGAC (DOI) Afternoon 

July 25th SGAC (DOI) All Day 

+ Google Calendar

DETAILS 

Start: 

�.!J.h� ... 2.3.., .. Z..Q.i.4 .. ,@ .. �.i.O.Q .. ,g,r.n .. CD T

+ Export to Calendar
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End: 

J..!JJ.Y ... 2.5., .. ?,Q:G.4 ... @ .. 5..;.Q,Q ... p,m,,,CDT 

Event Categories: 

SGAC, TSGAC 

900 10th St NW 

VENUE 

�. Borke 
[ '�,,:, ' 

Embassy Suites Washington, DC Convention Center 

900 10th Street NW 

Washington DC, pc_ 20001 United States+ Google Map 

View Venue Website 

Related Events 

Bowfe· 

., j, 

.. _. . ._:' 4 ·: .. �pRer 
JolntBase CD �arlbbro 
Andrew<> Goil . ; 

.. • • •• Map data ©2�.23_GooQlej_ Report•a map error 
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Jennifer A. Webster 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

selfgov_tribal@tribalselfgov.simplelists.com on behalf of Jay Spaan 
<jays@tribalselfgov.org > 
Thursday, October 12, 2023 1 :48 PM 
selfgov_tribal@tribalselfgov.simplelists.com 

Subject: 2024 Dates for IHS TSGAC and DOI SGAC Meetings 

The Indian Health Service's Tribal Self-Governance Advisory Committee (TSGAC) and the Department of the 
Interior's Self-Governance Advisory Committee (SGAC) meeting dates for 2024 are as follows: 

. February 20 (full day)- February 21, 2024 (AM)- DOI SGAC 
February 21 (PM) - February 22, 2024 (full day) - IHS TSGAC 

July 23 (full day) - July 24 (AM) - IHS TSGAC 
July 24 (PM) - July 25 (full day) - DOI SGAC 

December 16 (full day) - December 17 (AM) - I HS TSGAC 
December 17 (PM) - December 18 (full day) - DOI SGAC 

All meetings will convene in Washington, D.C., at the Embassy Suites Washington DC Convention Center (900 10th 

St NW). 

Room block information will be shared in advance of each meeting. 

Thank you! 

To unsubscribe from this list please go to 

https://tribalselfgov.simplelists.com/confirm/?u=oLUojHQta21XzwyOPbj7UY6GZmCtOgXO 

1 
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Business Committee Agenda Request 

1. Meeting Date Requested: 06/12/24 

2. Session:

IZ] Open D Executive - must qualify under §107.4-1.

Justification: Jennifer Webster HHS Secretary's Tribal Advisory 
Committee (STAC) Portland, OR 09/09/2024 -09/13/2024 

3. Requested Motion:

IZ] Accept as information; OR

Approve Travel - Jennifer Webster HHS Secretary's Tribal Advisory Committee (STAC) 
Portland, OR 

4. Areas potentially impacted or affected by this request:

D Finance D Programs/Services

0 Law Office O DTS

D Gaming/Retail D Boards, Committees, or Commissions

IZ] Other: HHS Secretary's Tribal

Advisory Committee (STAC) Portland, 
OR 09/09/2024 -09/13/2024 

5. Additional attendees needed for this request:

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Revised: 08/25/2023 Page 1 of 2 

Approve the travel request - Councilwoman Jennifer Webster - Health and Human Services Secretary's...Approve the travel request - Councilwoman Jennifer Webster - Health and Human Services Secretary's...
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6. Supporting Documents:

D Bylaws D Fiscal Impact Statement D Presentation 

D Contract Document(s) D Law D Report 

D Correspondence D Legal Review D Resolution 

D Draft GTC Notice D Minutes D Rule (adoption packet) 

0 Draft GTC Packet 0 MOU/MOA D Statement of Effect 

D E-poll results/back-up D Petition IZ] Travel Documents 

IZ] Other: e-mail back up

7. Budget Information:

D Budgeted - Tribal Contribution IZ] Budgeted - Grant Funded 

0 Not Applicable D Unbudgeted

D Other: Special Projects

8. Submission:

Authorized Sponsor: Jennifer Webster, Councilwoman 

Primary Requester: (Name, Title/Entity) 
�-----�-- -----------

Revised: 08/25/2023 Page 2 of 2 
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Oneida Business Committee Travel Request 

1. OBC Meeting Date Requested: 6 I 12 / 24 D e-poll requested 

2. General Information:

Event Name:
HHS Secretary's Tribal Advisory Committee (STA() 

---------------------------------

Event Location: Portland, OR Attendee(s): pennlfer Webster Ell 

Departure Date: l� ___ s_e _p _te_m_ b_ e_r _9_, 2_0 _2 _4 __ ___,

Return Date: September 13, 20 2 4 

Attendee(s): j�----------�B=""=

Attendee(s): l�----------�[:]=""=j 

3. Budget Information:

D Funds available In Individual travel budget(s)
D Unbudgeted
18] Grant Funded or Reimbursed

4. Justification:

Describe the justification of this Travel Request:

Cost Estimate: $1820.00 (Reimbursed from STAC)

During the STAC mtg , there will be on overview of the HHS Budget, current updates on the budget process, and 
an overview of the current budget situation. It wlll Include a broad overview, provide Tribal specific Information. 
There will be an opportunity for STAC to engage with the Directors from the following areas: 
SAMSHA , HRSA, ACF, NIH who will provide an overall update on work as it relates to Indian Country. 
Travel estimate does not Include airfare as HHS provides that. 

Note: Chairman Stuck from the Nottawaseppl Huron Band of the Potawatomi has recently stepped down and I 
serve as his alternate for the Bemidji Area. 

Request: 
Approve travel request 

5. Submission

Sponsor: r-µe_n_n-if -er-W-eb- s-te_ r _, C_ o_u_n _c -ilm-em-b -er
------------------------..

E]
....,
I 

1) Save a copy of this form for your records. ! Save a Copy... !
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.
3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials In a SINGLE *.pdf flle to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanatlon.org

Form approved by OBC on 03/25/2015 
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ONEIDA NATION 

TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

General Travel Information 

Name of Traveler Jennifer Webster 
Leqal name as it aooears on Travelers Driver's License or State ID, no nicknames 

Employee Number  I . •  

Destination City Portland, OR 

Departure date 09/09/2024 I Return date I 09/13/2024 

Purpose of travel HHS Secretaries Tribal Advisory Committee (STAG) 

Charged GL Account 
GSA (General SelVices Administration) Rates are linked on SharePoint under Employee Resources 

I Per Diem rate per day (meals) $ 74.00 

Cost Estimate Information 

Personal Automobile Mileage Expenses 
Total miles I Multiply by the Mileage rate $.625 I $0.00 

Description Rate Factor Days Total 
Per Diem for Initial travel date $ 74.00 0.75 1 $ 55.50 
Per Diem full dav at destination $ 74.00 1.00 3 .$ 222.00 
Per Diem for return travel date $ 74.00 0.75 1 $ 55.50 
Included meals total $1,00 
Miscellaneous expenses: taxi, 
parking, fees, etc. 

Sub-Total = Travel Advance $ 332.00 

Lodging including room, taxes, fees, $ 182.00 
and hotel parking 

4 $728.00 

Airfare $0.00 
Luaaage Fees $ 60.00 
Car Rental $ 200.00 
Registration $0.00 
Allow::ible nrice adit 1stment $ 500.00 

Sub-Total= Virtual Card $1,488.00 
Total Cost Estimate $1,820.00 

I understand this advance will be deducted from my claim for reimbursement of actual travel expenses. 
I also understand that if this advance In not cleared within 10 calendar days after my travel return date, 
the Nation has the authority to withhold any advanced funds from future wages. 
SI natures / A 

Date 

Traveler 
Department Sign-off 

Send all travel related Items to: CentralAccounting_ Travel@oneidanation.org 

Public Packet 85 of 132



Jennifer A. Webster 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

DearSTAC, 

STAC (HHS/IOS) <STAC@hhs.gov> 
Friday, January 5, 2024 4:55 PM 
STAC (HHS/IOS) 
Smith, Jessica (HHS/IEA); Meissner, Lisa (HHS/IEA); Delrow, Devin (HHS/IEA) 
RE: STAC Follow-Up and Upcoming Meeting Dates Proposed 
HHS STAC Vacancy Nomination DTLL 1.2.24.pdf 

We just wanted to follow-up on our previous e-mail. Based on your feedback, we will be canceling the February STAC

meeting. I know this is not ideal but we could not find an alternative that worked. H owever we will still be providing 
the STAC with a Report on updates from Issues raised at the November meeting. We will provide that report to you by

February 16th . We are also In process of finalizing the Meeting Summary from the November meeting and will share 
that next week. 

Please note additional confirmed meeting dates for 2024: 

• HHS Tribal Budget Consultation on FY 2026: April 9 -10, 2024 (Washington, DC) (HHS wl/l cover your travel to

attend!)
• STAC: May 7-8, 2024 (Washington, DC) -\){\ vv,<L\,v'v\ IO t\-{I t,v\.{{
• STAC: September 10-12, 2024 (Indian Country Meeting: Northwest Portland Area Is host)
• STAC: November 19-20, 2024 (Washington, DC)

And lastly we sent out our Dear Tribal Leader Letter (attached) requesting nominations for those Areas where we have 
vacancies. Thank you to those who have already sent In their nominations. Please note that the deadline to send In 
nominations is February 9, 2024. 

As always, please reach out If you have any questions I 

Respectfully, 

Devin De/row, J.D. (Dine) 

Principal Advisor for Tribal Affairs 
Office of the Secretary I Intergovernmental and External Affairs 
Department of Health and Human Services 
202-868-0013 (cell)

1 
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Business Committee Agenda Request 

1. Meeting Date Requested: 06/12/24 

2. Session:

IZJ Open D Executive - must qualify under §107.4-1.

Justification: Jennifer Webster Self Governance Meeting (IHS­
TSGAC) Washington, DC December 15, 2024- December 17, 2024 

3. Requested Motion:

IZJ Accept as information; OR

Approve Travel - Jennifer Webster Self Governance Meeting (IHS- TSGAC) 
Washington, DC December 15, 2024- December 17, 2024 

4. Areas potentially impacted or affected by this request:

D Finance

D Law Office

D Programs/Services

0 DTS

D Gaming/Retail D Boards, Committees, or Commissions

IZJ Other: Self Governance Meeting

(IHS- TSGAC) 

5. Additional attendees needed for this request:

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

Revised: 08/25/2023 Page 1 of 2 

Approve the travel request - Councilwoman Jennifer Webster - Indian Health Services Tribal Self...Approve the travel request - Councilwoman Jennifer Webster - Indian Health Services Tribal Self...
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6. Supporting Documents:

D Bylaws D Fiscal Impact Statement D Presentation

D Contract Document(s) D Law D Report

D Correspondence D Legal Review D Resolution

D Draft GTC Notice D Minutes D Rule (adoption packet)

0 Draft GTC Packet 0 MOU/MOA D Statement of Effect

D E-poll results/back-up D Petition [Z] Travel Documents

[Z] Other: Self Governance Meeting (IHS- TSGAC)

7. Budget Information:

D Budgeted - Tribal Contribution [Z] Budgeted - Grant Funded

0 Not ApplicableD Unbudgeted

D Other: Special Projects

8. Submission:

Authorized Sponsor: Jennifer Webster, Councilwoman 

Primary Requestor: (Name, Title/Entity) 
----- - - - - - - - - - - - - - --

Revised: 08/25/2023 Page 2 of 2 
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Oneida Business Committee Travel Request 

1. OBC Meeting Date Requested: D e-poll requested 

2. General Information:

Event Name:
Self Governance Mtg (IHS-TSGAC) 

----------------------------------

Event Location: Washington DC 

Departure Date: ,__I ___ D _ec_e _m_ b_e_r _1 _5 _, 2_0_2 _4 __ __J 

Return Date: December 17, 202 4 

3. Budget Information:

18] Funds available in individual travel budget(s)
D Unbudgeted

18] Grant Funded or Reimbursed

4. Justification:

Describe the justification of this Travel Request: 

Attendee(s): �ennifer Webster Bl 

Attendee(s): �I ______ ___ _ __ �G=,..=I

Attendee(s): �I ____________ �G="'=I

Cost Estimate: $17 56. 50 (Reimbursed) 

Council Member Jennifer Webster - Indian Health Service's Tribal Self-Governance Advisory Committee Meeting. 
Washington DC 

December 16 (all day) 
December 17 (am only) 

The Indian Health Service (IHS) Tribal Self Governance Advisory Committee (TSGAC) provides a forum for Tribal 
and Federal officials to discussissues related to Tribal administration of Federal programs and services, exchange 
ideas, and develop solutions intended to improve Self-Governance and enhance the Tribal-Federal partnership. 

All travel expenses are reimbursed. 

5. Submission
.-----------------------------------.,.....,, 

Sponsor:
� --------- ----- -------------------........, 

1) Save a copy of this form for your records. I Save a Copy ... I
2) Print this form as a *.pdf OR print and scan this form in as *.pdf.
3) E-mail this form and all supporting materials in a SINGLE *.pdf file to: BC_Agenda_Requests@oneidanation.org

Form approved by OBC on 03/25/2015 
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ONEIDA NATION 
TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION REQUEST 

General Travel Information 

Name of Traveler 
Le al name as it a 
Employee Number 

Destination City 

Jennifer Webster 

 I 
Washington DC 

Departure date 12/15/2024 Return date 12/17/2024 

Purpose of travel Self Govermance Mtg (IHS-TSGAC) 
Charged GL Account 

GSA (General Services Administration) Rates are linked on SharePoint under Employee Resources 

I Per Diem rate per day (meals) $ 79.00 

Cost Estimate Information 

Personal Automobile Mileage Expenses 
Total miles I Multiply by the Mileage rate 

Description Rate Factor 
Per Diem for initial travel date $ 79.00 0.75 
Per Diem full day at destination $ 79.00 1.00 
Per Diem for return travel date $ 79.00 0.75 
Included meals total 
Miscellaneous expenses: taxi, 
parkinq, fees, etc. 

$ ,625 
Days 

1 
1 
1 

Sub-Total= Travel Advance 

Lodging including room, taxes, fees, 
and hotel parking 
Airfare 
Luqqage Fees 
Car Rental 
Registration 
Allowable nrice adiustment 

Sub-Total= Virtual Card 
Total Cost Estimate 

I $ 0.00 
Total 
$ 59.25 
$ 79.00 

.. $ 59.25 
$1.00 

$ 196.50 

$ 0.00 

$1,000.00 
$ 60.00 
$ 0.00 
$ 0.00 

$ 500.00 
$1,560.00 
$1,756.50 

I understand this advance will be deducted from my claim for reimbursement of actual travel expenses. 
I also understand that if this advance in not cleared within 10 calendar days after my travel return date, 
the Nation has the authority to withhold any advanced funds from future wages. 

Si natures I A rovals 

Traveler 

Su ervisor 

Send all travel related items to: CentralAccounting_ Travel@oneidanation.org 
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TSGAC/SGAC Advisory Committee Meetings 

December 16, 2024 @ 8:00 am - December 18, 2024 @ 5:00 pm CST 

Dec 16th TSGAC (IHS) All Day 

Dec 17th TSGAC (IHS) Morning 

Dec 17th SGAC (DOI) Afternoon 

Dec 18th SGAC (DOI) All Day 

+ Google Calendar

DETAILS 

Start: 

+ Export to Calendar
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End: 

Event Categories: 

SGAC, TSGAC 

900 10th St NW 

�/ :c�plt�l 
1 ,.@} '!:felghf� ·.

. , 
I Fairfax. 

� l3orke 
: ,�, 

VENUE 

Embassy Suites Washington, DC Convention Center 

900 10th Street NW 

Washington DC, pc_ 20001 United States+ Google Map 

View Venue Website 

Related Events 
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Jennifer A. Webster 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 

selfgov_tribal@tribalselfgov.simplelists.com on behalf of Jay Spaan 
<jays@tribalselfgov.org > 
Thursday, October 12, 2023 1 :48 PM 
selfgov_tribal@tribalselfgov.simplelists.com 

Subject: 2024 Dates for IHS TSGAC and DOI SGAC Meetings 

The Indian Health Service's Tribal Self-Governance Advisory Committee (TSGAC) and the Department of the 
Interior's Self-Governance Advisory Committee (SGAC) meeting dates for 2024 are as follows: 

_ February 20 (full day)- February 21, 2024 (AM)- DOI SGAC 
February 21 (PM) - February 22, 2024 (full day) - IHS TSGAC 

July 23 (full day) - July 24 (AM) - IHS TSGAC 
July 24 (PM) - July 25 (full day) - DOI SGAC 

December 16 (full day) - December 17 (AM) - I HS TSGAC 
December 17 (PM) - December 18 (full day) - DOI SGAC 

All meetings wiil convene in Washington, D.C., at the Embassy Suites Washington DC Convention Center (900 10th 

St NW). 

Room block information will be shared in advance of each meeting. 

Thank you! 

To unsubscribe from this list please go to 

https://tribalselfgov.simplelists.com/confirm/7u=oLUojHQta21XzwyOPbj7UY6GZmCtOgXO 

1 
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Revised: 11/15/2021 Page 1 of 2 

Business Committee Agenda Request 

1. Meeting Date Requested:

2. Session:
Open  Executive – must qualify under §107.4-1.

Justification: Choose or type justification. 

Requested Motion:

Accept as information; OR

Areas potentially impacted or affected by this request:
Programs/Services

MIS

Boards, Committees, or Commissions

Finance

Law Office

Gaming/Retail

Other:

5. Additional attendees needed for this request:

6/12/24

Actions noted on attached memo.

 Nicole Rommel - Director - Land Management

 Kurt Jordan - Project Manager - Land Management

Approve the concept paper - CDC # 23-115 - Material Staging AreaApprove the concept paper - CDC # 23-115 - Material Staging AreaApprove the concept paper - CDC # 23-115 - Material Staging Area

Public Packet 94 of 132



Revised: 11/15/2021 Page 2 of 2 

Fiscal Impact Statement

Law

Legal Review

Minutes

MOU/MOA

Petition

Presentation

Report

Resolution

Rule (adoption packet)

Statement of Effect

Travel Documents

Budgeted – Grant Funded

Not Applicable

Supporting Documents:
Bylaws

Contract Document(s)

Correspondence

Draft GTC Notice

Draft GTC Packet

E-poll results/back-up

Other:

Budget Information:
Budgeted – Tribal Contribution

Unbudgeted

Other:

Submission:

Authorized Sponsor: Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from 

Primary Requestor:   

#23-115 Concept Paper

Mark W. Powless - General Manager

Paul Witek - Engineering Director/Senior Architect

Mark W. Powless Digitally signed by Mark W. Powless 
Date: 2024.05.28 09:02:46 -05'00'
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Engineering Department 

Division of Public Works 

 

N7332 Water Circle Place  •  P.O. Box 365 • Oneida, WI 54155 
oneida-nsn.gov 

 

May 22, 2024 
 
Business Committee Agenda Request - Memo 
 
Project No.: 23-115 Project Title: Material Staging Area 

 
Purpose: 
 
The project team is seeking approval of the project’s Concept Paper through the Capital 
Improvement Process (CIP). 
 
OBC approval of the Concept Paper is not project approval, it will allow the project to proceed 
into the next phase of CIP. The approval shows that the OBC supports the proposed project 
concept but needs more information to approve the project. The Concept Paper approval 
authorizes the Project Team to work on the project’s CDC Approval Package. The project’s CDC 
Approval Package will contain more detailed information allowing for a more complete review 
of the project scope and budget before full project approval is given. 
 
Background: 
 
The intent of the proposed project is to create a designated space to accept and stage clean 
materials, such as topsoil, aggregate, sand, clay, etc. Currently, the Nation does not have a 
designated space for such activities.  
 
No funding is needed for the development of the project’s CDC Package. 
 
Attachments: 

 
 23-115 Concept Paper with CIP Form-05. 

 
Action Requested: 
 

1. Approval of the Concept Paper for CDC #23-115 Material Staging Area. 
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CONCEPT PAPER 
For 

Material Staging Area 
CDC #23-115 

 
April 1, 2024 

 
I. Purpose: 

 
A. Background. 

 
1. In 2003-2004, the Division of Land Management organized a cross functional, 

multi departmental team (Demo Team) to assist with various residential and 
agricultural razing, deconstruction, and cleanup projects to better coordinate 
numerous tasks. The Demo Team received approval from Land Commission to 
utilize the site in the 200 block of Adam Drive for staging of materials.  
 
In 2021, a mutual agreement was executed to no longer use the Adam Drive for 
material staging and directed to re-locate operations to a new site. The relocation 
was due to community concerns with the staging area being adjacent to the 
Sacred Burial Grounds. 

 
2. In August of 2023, the Engineering Department received a formal CIP project 

request for a Material Staging area. 
 

B. The proposed project is needed to address: 
 

1. Not having a material staging area since 2021. 
2. Create an identity. 
3. Capability to accept, retain and stage valuable resources, such as topsoil, sand, 

and general overburden materials.  
4. Improve the Nation’s stockpile management. 
5. Lessen environmental impacts. 
6. Save costs. 
7. Allow materials to stay within the reservation for internal re-use. 

 
II. Project Analysis 
 

A. Project Description: The proposed project will consist of developing a site into a 
material staging area. The Oneida Nation regularly generates (or requires) topsoil or 
overburden from construction, infrastructure, demolition, and restoration related 
projects. The site would be designed to allow acceptance and staging of clean material 
such as: topsoil, overburden soil, aggregate, sand, clay, etc. Each of the accepted 
materials would have designated areas for ease of stockpile management, access, and 
extraction. 
 
Currently, the Nation does not have a designated space to accept or store clean materials. 
This has caused various projects to dispose of excess materials at vacant sites scattered 
throughout the reservation. These scattered dump sites have created unpleasant 
landscapes, environmental impacts, additional work and have created challenges for 
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Concept Paper 
CDC #23-115 

 

G:\ENG\Projects\23-115 Staging\CIP\23-115 Concept Paper - Draft.docx 
- 2 - 

future developments. In certain cases, the Nation has paid additional fees for off-site 
disposal simply because there is no designated area to accept material. Additionally, it is 
a cost saving measure when the Nation can provide materials for re-use on tribal 
projects, such as a project that lacks the required resources.  
 
Since the Nation does not have a designated space, creating a properly managed area 
with a clear identity and location will improve the Nation’s stockpile management, 
lessen environmental impacts, save costs, and allow materials to stay within the 
reservation for internal re-use. 
 

B. Assumptions: 
 

1. That the Tribal organization will support the project moving forward. 
2. Funding will be available for developing the project. 
3. That the Tribal organization will support the ongoing operational needs/costs of 

the relocated operation. 
4. Utilizing the Nation’s own resources for construction projects will result in better 

stockpile management practices and save the Nation money. 
5. Create a clear identity. 
6. Create a safe, clean, and organized workplace and environment within the project 

site.   
 

C. Operational Impact:  
  
1. Development of a material staging area requiring organizational support may 

require additional staffing from DPW, Conservation, Land, etc. A full evaluation 
will be included in the project’s CDC Approval Package. 

2. A new material staging area will be more efficient for Contractors, staff, and 
equipment/ operators. 
 

D. Organizational Goals: The project would support the following goals and objectives 
of the 2008 Comprehensive Plan for the Oneida Reservation and its 2014 update: 

 
1. Plan Element: Natural Resources 

a) GOAL #1: Commit to responsible stewardship of our natural resources. 
 

 
2. Plan Element: Land Use 

a) GOAL #1: Maintain a balance between the natural components and the 
built environment of our land. 

 
 
III. Market 
 

A. Market Served: Capital Improvement Projects, various internal departments, 
Community and Membership. 
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Concept Paper 
CDC #23-115 

 

G:\ENG\Projects\23-115 Staging\CIP\23-115 Concept Paper - Draft.docx 
- 3 - 

B. Competition: As the department is providing community and organizational direct 
materials/ resources, there is not any competition. 

 
IV. Potential Risk: 
 

A. Unable to obtain approval of desired property.  
  

B. Unauthorized disposal of materials 
 

C. Change in Tribal political climate. 
 
D. Effects of ongoing or future pandemic. 
 
E. Personnel changes at leadership roles. 
 
F. Failure to meet and fulfill the Comprehensive Plan’s goals and objectives supported by 

this project. 
 
G. No funding support from BC or GTC. 
 

 
V. Potential Investment  
 

A. Funding Sources: Potential funding sources for this project include: 
 

1. Grants 
2. CIP Budget 

 
B. Development Costs: This project will not require any funding for completing the 

project’s CDC Approval Package if the Concept Paper is approved. 
 

C. Construction Cost Target:  
 

1. The project’s CDC Approval Package will identify the total project budget 
estimate. 

 
VI. Time Line  Upon approval of the Concept Paper: 

 
A. CIP Phase I – CDC Approval Package   10 weeks 
B. CIP Phase II -Project Ranking and Approval 62 weeks 

1. Includes waiting for budget allocation. 
C. CIP Phase III –Design    45 weeks 
D. CIP Phase IV- Construction   31 weeks 
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Concept Paper 
CDC #23-115 

 

G:\ENG\Projects\23-115 Staging\CIP\23-115 Concept Paper - Draft.docx 
- 4 - 

 
VII. Recommendations 
 

A. It is recommended strong consideration be given to this project in order to help the 
Environmental, Health, Safety, Land & Agriculture Division accomplish goals and 
objectives in their work plans as well as those set in the Oneida Reservation 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 
VIII. Client Approval  A signed copy of the CIP-05 Form is attached indicating approval by 

client’s division director. 
 
ATTACHMENT: FORM CIP-05 
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Business Committee Agenda Request

1. Meeting Date Requested: 06/12/24

2. General Information:
Session: ☒ Open ☐ Executive – must qualify under §107.4-1.

Justification: Choose reason for Executive.

3. Supporting Documents:
☐ Bylaws

☐ Contract Document(s)

☒ Correspondence

☐ Draft GTC Notice

☐ Draft GTC Packet

☐ E-poll results/back-up

☐ Fiscal Impact Statement

☐ Law

☐ Legal Review

☐ Minutes

☐ MOU/MOA

☐ Petition

☐ Presentation

☐ Report

☒ Resolution

☐ Rule (adoption packet)

☐ Statement of Effect

☐ Travel Documents

☒ Other: Draft Correspondence

4. Budget Information:
☐ Budgeted ☐ Budgeted – Grant Funded ☐ Unbudgeted

☐ Not Applicable ☒ Other: ARPA FRF TCS

5. Submission:

Authorized Sponsor: Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Primary Requestor:  

Additional Requestor: (Name, Title/Entity)

Additional Requestor:  (Name, Title/Entity)

Submitted By: LLIGGINS

Consider three (3) actions regarding non-reporting ARPA FRF projectsConsider three (3) actions regarding non-reporting ARPA FRF projectsConsider three (3) actions regarding non-reporting ARPA FRF projectsConsider three (3) actions regarding non-reporting ARPA FRF projectsConsider three (3) actions regarding non-reporting ARPA FRF projectsConsider three (3) actions regarding non-reporting ARPA FRF projects
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Memorandum 

 To: Oneida Nation School Board 

 Cc: Oneida Business Committee 

Date: June 14, 2024 

Re: Halt expenditures for non-reporting – BC Resolution # 07-27-22-O 

 

The Business Committee (BC) adopted resolutions # BC-06-09-21-B, BC-06-23-21- C, and BC 
03-30-22-A which allocated American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Federal Relief Funds (ARPA 
FRF) to eight categories of use, provided the project approval process, and provided reporting 
requirements. 
 
The most recent reporting request from Project Owners were presented to the BC at the March 
7 and May 2, 2024, BC work sessions.  Reporting related to BC resolution # 07-27-22-O, 
Obligation for Oneida Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN) 
Expansion Project Utilizing Tribal Contribution Savings, was not submitted. 
 
Reporting is used as a measure of how well a program is meeting goals and obtaining positive 
results; lack of reporting can be the result of any number of reasons which may result of 
cancellation of the obligation. We are hopeful that the missed reporting is simply an oversight.  
However, in the interests of protecting the assets of the Nation, the BC took action at the June 
12, 2024, to “halt expenditures related to BC resolution # 07-27-22-O, Obligation for Oneida 
Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN) Expansion Project 
Utilizing Tribal Contribution Savings, effective immediately and until such time as the proper 
reporting is submitted to the CFO in accordance with resolution 05-22-24-A”. 
 
Attached you will find BC resolution # 05-22-24-A, Amending BC Resolution 03-30-22-A 
Updating Tribal Contribution Savings Processes and Allocations.  This resolution updates the 
reporting process, provides that Project Owners submit reporting to the Chief Financial Officer 
(CFO) as requested by the CFO, and provides that the CFO submit reporting to the BC.  The 
CFO is working to implement these reporting functions which will be communicated when they 
are ready.  Please review and share as you see fit to ensure reporting is submitted. 
 
If you have questions, please contact Councilman Marlon Skenandore, or Secretary Lisa 
Liggins.   
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Memorandum 
To: Oneida Business Committee 

Cc: Mark W. Powless, General Manager 
Sacheen Lawrence, Chair/Oneida Nation School Board 

From: Lisa Liggins, Secretary 

Date: June 4, 2024 

Re: Halt expenditures for non-reporting – ARPA FRF Projects 

Background 
The Business Committee (BC) adopted resolutions # BC-06-09-21-B, BC-06-23-21- C, 
and BC 03-30-22-A which allocated American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Federal Relief 
Funds (ARPA FRF) to eight categories of use and provided the project approval 
process.  Resolution # BC 03-30-22-A, Updating Tribal Contribution Savings Processes 
and Allocations, required the Strategic Planner to provide a quarterly report to BC on 
the status of all approved projects and also required the Project Owner to provide a final 
project report to the Strategic Planner identifying at minimum - total cost amount 
unexpended, and both tangible and intangible benefits. 

The Strategic Planner position was removed from the BC organizational chart at the 
start of the 2023-2026 term.  In early 2024, noting the missing quarterly reports to the 
BC, Chief Counsel volunteered to reach out to Project Owners to request information 
and to provide a reporting to the BC.  There were two rounds of reports provided to the 
BC at the March 7 and May 2, 2024, BC work sessions.  The following two (2) projects 
did not provide the requested reporting: 

• BC-07-27-22-O, Obligation for Oneida Language Department (OLD) and
Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN) Expansion Project Utilizing Tribal
Contribution Savings

• BC-10-22-22-A, Beef Discount Project Utilizing Tribal Contribution Savings

At the May 22, 2024, regular BC meeting, resolution # BC-05-22-24-A, Amending BC 
Resolution 03-30-22-A Updating Tribal Contribution Savings Processes and Allocations, 
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was adopted.  This resolution updated the reporting process; the resolution provides 
that Project Owners provide reporting to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as requested 
by the CFO, and provides that the CFO submit reporting to the BC.  The CFO is working 
to implement these reporting functions which will be communicated when they are 
ready. 
 
I have made two recommendations regarding the projects at the end of this memo. The 
Beef Discount Project is concluded, it is simply a matter of identifying any remaining 
funds and the benefits of the program. However, the Oneida Language Department 
Program is a significantly large amount of funding that has yet to report on its activities 
or expenditures. Since reporting is used as a measure of how well the program is 
meeting goals and obtaining positive results, the lack of reporting can be the result of 
any number of reasons which may result of cancellation of the obligation. I am hopeful 
that it is simply an oversight, but in the interests of protecting the assets of the Nation, I 
am recommending no further expenditures be allowed until reporting is made. 
 
Requested Action 
 

1. Beef Discount Project 
a. The project has concluded.  As noted in the adopting resolution the 

conclusion date for the project was September 30, 2023. 
b. Suggested motion: 

i. Direct the General Manager to ensure close out reporting is 
submitted to the CFO in accordance with resolution 05-22-24-A. 

 
2. Oneida Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN) 

Expansion Project 
a. This project is ongoing.  As noted in the adopting resolution, the 

conclusion date for the project is September 30, 2028. 
b. Suggested motion: 

i. Halt expenditures related to BC resolution # 07-27-22-O, Obligation 
for Oneida Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa 
Language Nest (TLN) Expansion Project Utilizing Tribal 
Contribution Savings, effective immediately and until such time as 
the proper reporting is submitted to the CFO in accordance with 
resolution 05-22-24-A. 

ii. Approve the attached correspondence to the Oneida Nation School 
Board. 
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Oneida Nation 
 

Post Office Box 365 
 
 Phone: (920)869-2214                                       Oneida, WI 54155 
 
 
 
 
 

BC Resolution # 05-22-24-A  
Amending BC Resolution 03-30-22-A Updating Tribal Contribution Savings Processes and 

Allocations 
 

WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe 
recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1, 

of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee adopted resolutions # BC-06-09-21-B, BC-06-23-21- C, 

and BC 03-30-22-A which allocated ARPA FRF to eight categories of use; and 
 
WHEREAS,    # BC 03-30-22-A required the Strategic Planner to provide a combined quarterly report to 

the Oneida Business Committee on the status of all approved projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Project Owner was required to provide a final project report to the Strategic Planner 

identifying at minimum - total cost amount unexpended, and both tangible and intangible 
benefits – on the Oneida Business Committee work session; and  

 
WHEREAS,  the “Updated TC Savings Obligations” worksheet was to be updated to reflect the amount 

of funds returned from the obligation back to the category allocated for re-obligation; and  
 
WHEREAS,    the Oneida Business Committee for the 2023-2026 term has removed the Strategic 

Planner from the approved positions for the support of the Oneida Business Committee; 
and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida Business Committee has identified a need to amend the reporting process and 

provide the membership reporting on the status of the TC Savings projects funds; and 
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BC Resolution # 05-22-24-A 
Amending BC Resolution 03-30-22-A Updating Tribal Contribution Savings Processes and 

 Allocations 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Oneida Business Committee amends the reporting process 
identified in #BC 03-30-22-A to the following project reporting process. 
 
5.  Reporting. The Project Owner shall provide reporting to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as requested 
by the CFO. The CFO shall provide a report that will include the following: 

 Obligated TC Savings Amount 
 Approved Purchase Orders 
 Actual Expenditures to Date 
 Project Owner 
 Balance of Obligated Funds Remaining for Expenditure 
 Narrative Project update 

 
The report will be part of the Chief Financial Officer report to the OBC Executive Session, presented after 
Treasurer’s monthly report, posted on the Members Only portion of the Oneida Nation website, included 
in the Annual and Semi-Annual Reports to the General Tribal Council, as well as presented in the 
Kalihwisaks on a quarterly basis. 
 
6. Final Report. The Project Owner shall provide to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) a final project report 
identifying, at minimum – total cost amount unexpended, and both tangible and intangible benefits – on 
the Oneida Business Committee work session. Copies of project reports and quarter project reports shall 
be maintained in the ARPA FRF Tracking Team files. Upon filing of the final report with the Oneida 
Business Committee at a work session, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) shall update the “Updated TC 
Savings Obligations” work sheet to reflect the amount of funds returned from the obligation back to the 
category allocated for re-obligation. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, BC Resolution # 03-30-22-A updated Tribal Contributions Savings 
Allocation spreadsheet is the last approved Tribal Contribution Savings Allocation spreadsheet and is 
attached to amended BC resolution 05-22-24-A. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, as Secretary of the Oneida Business Committee, hereby certify that the Oneida 
Business Committee is composed of 9 members of whom 5 members constitute a quorum; 7 members 
were present at a meeting duly called, noticed and held on the 22nd day of May, 2024; that the forgoing 
resolution was duly adopted at such meeting by a vote of 6 members for, 0 members against, and 0 
members not voting*; and that said resolution has not been rescinded or amended in any way. 
 
 

 
____________________________ 

Lisa Liggins, Secretary 
Oneida Business Committee 

 
*According to the By-Laws, Article I, Section 1, the Chair votes "only in the case of a tie." 
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Oneida Nation 
 

Post Office Box 365 
 
 

Phone: (920)869-2214                                       Oneida, WI 54155  
 
 
 
 

 
BC Resolution # 07-27-22-O 

Obligation for Oneida Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN) 
Expansion Project Utilizing Tribal Contribution Savings 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe 

recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1, 

of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation has received Fiscal Recovery Funds (FRF) through the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) funds to address matters arising out of the COVID-19 
pandemic; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee has approved application of ARPA FRF through the 

revenue loss formula set forth in 31 CFR 35.6(d)(2) which applied these federal funds 
throughout the Nation’s budget to governmental programs business units beginning with 
“42#####”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the savings from the application of these funds has resulted in tribal funds being placed in 

the line “Tribal Contribution Savings” in the Investment Report presented in the Treasurer’s 
Report; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee has determined that Tribal Contribution Savings funds 

should be used as set out in resolution # BC-06-09-21-B, as amended by resolution # BC-
06-23-21-C which designates percentage allocations to eight categories (percentages 
rounded) –  
 Direct Membership Assistance, 45% of funds; 
 Housing, 17% of funds; 
 Food and Agriculture, 12% of funds; 
 Education, 6% of funds; 
 Culture and Language, 10% of funds; 
 Revenue Generations, 2% of funds; 
 Government Roles and Responsibilities, 3% of funds; 
 Overall Priority – Land, Infrastructure, Sovereignty, 5% of funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN) 

Expansion Project will to provide for the continued implementation and expansion of 
Oneida Language Revitalization efforts; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Project Owner for the proposed project is requesting $9,685,027 obligated from the 

Tribal Contribution Savings, Culture and Language; and 
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BC Resolution # 07-27-22-O 
Obligation for Oneida Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN)  

Expansion Project Utilizing Tribal Contribution Savings 
Page 2 of 2 

 
WHEREAS, this project will be concluded by September 30, 2028; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee has reviewed the proposed project; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oneida Business Committee approves the obligation of 
funds for the Oneida Language Department (OLD) and Tehatiw^nakhwa Language Nest (TLN) Expansion 
Project, in the amount of $9,685,027 from Tribal Contribution Savings, Culture and Language, with Tracy 
Williams, Director, Oneida Language Department, assigned as the Project Owner. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, as Secretary of the Oneida Business Committee, hereby certify that the Oneida 
Business Committee is composed of 9 members of whom 5 members constitute a quorum; 8 members 
were present at a meeting duly called, noticed and held on the 27th day of July, 2022; that the forgoing 
resolution was duly adopted at such meeting by a vote of 7 members for, 0 members against, and 0 
members not voting*; and that said resolution has not been rescinded or amended in any way. 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Lisa Liggins, Secretary 

Oneida Business Committee 
 

*According to the By-Laws, Article I, Section 1, the Chair votes "only in the case of a tie." 
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Oneida Nation 
 

Post Office Box 365 
 
 

Phone: (920)869-2214                                       Oneida, WI 54155  
 
 
 
 

 
BC Resolution # 10-12-22-A 

Beef Discount Project Utilizing Tribal Contribution Savings  
 

WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe 
recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1, 

of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Nation has received Fiscal Recovery Funds (FRF) through the American 

Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARPA) funds to address matters arising out of the COVID-19 
pandemic; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee has approved application of ARPA FRF through the 

revenue loss formula set forth in 31 CFR 35.6(d)(2) which applied these federal funds 
throughout the Nation’s budget to governmental programs business units beginning with 
“42#####”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the savings from the application of these funds has resulted in tribal funds being placed in 

the line “Tribal Contribution Savings” in the Investment Report presented in the Treasurer’s 
Report; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee has determined that Tribal Contribution Savings funds 

should be used as set out in resolution # BC-06-09-21-B, as amended by resolution # BC-
06-23-21-C which designates percentage allocations to eight categories (percentages 
rounded) –  
 Direct Membership Assistance, 45% of funds; 
 Housing, 17% of funds; 
 Food and Agriculture, 12% of funds; 
 Education, 6% of funds; 
 Culture and Language, 10% of funds; 
 Revenue Generations, 2% of funds; 
 Government Roles and Responsibilities, 3% of funds; 
 Overall Priority – Land, Infrastructure, Sovereignty, 5% of funds; and 
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WHEREAS, this request is to fund the processing costs of 75 animals to be wholesaled to the Oneida 

Community at a discounted price.  Our request is to fund the processing cost of 75 head, 
and implement a discount offer to membership that allows them to purchase animals 
wholesale with that cost savings 100 percent trickling down to them.  Our goal of this project 
is to support membership in being able to prepare for the continuing rising cost of food by 
stocking their freezers with a high quality protein source, while simultaneously supporting 
our own system and economy by encouraging membership to invest their dollars back into 
Oneida; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Project Owner for the proposed project is requesting $75,000 obligated from the Tribal 

Contribution Savings, Food and Agriculture; and 
 
WHEREAS, this project will be concluded by September 30, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Oneida Business Committee has reviewed the proposed project; and 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oneida Business Committee approves the obligation of 
funds for the Beef Discount Project in the amount of $75,000 from Tribal Contribution Savings, Food and 
Agriculture with Vanessa Miller, Food and Agriculture Area Manager assigned as the Project Owner. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I, the undersigned, as Secretary of the Oneida Business Committee, hereby certify that the Oneida 
Business Committee is composed of 9 members of whom 5 members constitute a quorum; 6 members 
were present at a meeting duly called, noticed and held on the 12th day of October, 2022; that the forgoing 
resolution was duly adopted at such meeting by a vote of 3 members for, 0 members against, and 2 
members not voting*; and that said resolution has not been rescinded or amended in any way. 
 
 
 

____________________________ 
Lisa Liggins, Secretary 

Oneida Business Committee 
 

*According to the By-Laws, Article I, Section 1, the Chair votes "only in the case of a tie." 
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Business Committee Agenda Request 
 
 
1. Meeting Date Requested:  06/12/24 
 
 
2. Session: 
 ☒ Open ☐ Executive – must qualify under §107.4-1. 

Justification: Choose or type justification. 
 
 
3. Requested Motion: 

☐ Accept as information; OR 

Approve revised OYLI charter and bylaws 
 
 
4. Areas potentially impacted or affected by this request: 
☐ Finance 

☐ Law Office 

☐ Gaming/Retail 

☐ Programs/Services 

☐ DTS 

☒ Boards, Committees, or Commissions 

☐ Other: Describe 

 
 
5. Additional attendees needed for this request: 

 Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 
      Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List  
 Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

 Name, Title/Entity OR Choose from List 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Review Oneida Youth Leadership Institute charter and bylaws and determine next stepsReview Oneida Youth Leadership Institute charter and bylaws and determine next stepsReview Oneida Youth Leadership Institute charter and bylaws and determine next stepsReview Oneida Youth Leadership Institute charter and bylaws and determine next steps
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6. Supporting Documents: 
☒ Bylaws 

☐ Contract Document(s) 

☐ Correspondence 

☐ Draft GTC Notice 

☐ Draft GTC Packet 

☐ E-poll results/back-up 

☐ Fiscal Impact Statement 

☐ Law 

☐ Legal Review 

☐ Minutes 

☐ MOU/MOA 

☐ Petition 

☐ Presentation 

☐ Report 

☐ Resolution 

☐ Rule (adoption packet) 

☐ Statement of Effect 

☐ Travel Documents 

☒ Other: Charter 

 
 
7. Budget Information: 
 ☐ Budgeted – Tribal Contribution ☐ Budgeted – Grant Funded 

 ☐ Unbudgeted  ☒ Not Applicable  

 ☐ Other: Describe 

 
 
8. Submission: 

 
Authorized Sponsor: 

 
Marlon Skenandore, Councilman  

 
Primary Requestor:   

 
Cheryl Stevens 
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MEMORANDUM 

 
TO: BC Agenda  
 
FROM: Cheryl Stevens, OYLI Executive Manager  
 
DATE: May 13, 2024 
 
RE:   OYLI Charter/bylaws revisions  
 
Please put the attached OYLI Charter and bylaws on next OBC agenda for approval.  They have 
been updated and contain revisions provided by the Oneida Law Office due to inconsistencies 
with each other as working documents for the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute. The amount 
of stipends has also been revised from $50 per meeting to $100 per meeting to match the 
average board member compensation.  However, as a note, no board member has taken a 
stipend to date (2017 to present) but increasing the stipend might help recruit board members.   
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10 ONEIDA  YOUTH  LEADERSHIP  INSTITUTE  CHARTER 1 
 2 
 3 
Section I.  Establishment of the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute. 4 
 5 

A. Creation.  The Oneida Youth Leadership Institute (“OYLI”) is hereby established as a 6 
wholly owned unincorporated agency of the Oneida Nation (the “Nation”), and shall be 7 
governed and managed by a Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of this Charter; 8 
the Board of Directors is not a board, committee or commission for purposes of the 9 
Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions. 10 

 11 
B. Purpose.  The purpose of OYLI is to operate and support programs and activities 12 
which promote leadership qualities in Oneida youth, and to solicit charitable donations to 13 
fund such programs and activities. 14 

 15 
C. Location.  OYLI shall maintain its offices on the Oneida Reservation, but may 16 
conduct its activities both on and off the Reservation. 17 

 18 
D. Instrumentality of the Nation.  As a wholly owned instrumentality of the Nation, 19 
OLYI and its assets and activities shall have all the privileges and immunities of the 20 
Nation, including immunity from taxation, regulation and unconsented suit, subject to the 21 
limitations in this Charter and applicable law.  The Nation shall at all times retain the sole 22 
proprietary interest in OYLI. 23 

 24 
E. Exercise of Authority.  Any exercise by OYLI of any powers or authorities in 25 
accordance with this Charter shall constitute the exercise of a governmental function of 26 
the Nation.   27 

 28 
F. Allocation of Authority.  All rights, powers or privileges not expressly delegated 29 
herein to OYLI shall be reserved to and held by the Oneida Business Committee and the 30 
Oneida General Tribal Council. 31 

 32 
Section II.  Authority.  The Oneida Business Committee grants this Charter based upon the 33 
authority vested in it by the Oneida General Tribal Council and Art. IV, §§ 1(g) and (h) of the 34 
Oneida Nation Constitution and By-Laws, and pursuant to the inherent sovereign rights of the 35 
Nation. 36 
 37 
Section III.  Term of Existence.  OYLI shall be formed as of the time of the granting of this 38 
Charter and its term of existence shall be perpetual, unless it is earlier dissolved pursuant to 39 
section XII of this Charter.  40 
 41 
Section IV.  Jurisdiction.  OYLI is created under and is subject to the jurisdiction, laws, and 42 
ordinances of the Nation. 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
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 47 
 48 
Section V.  Privileges and Immunities. 49 
 50 

A. Privileges and Immunities.  OYLI shall be entitled to all of the privileges and 51 
immunities of the Nation, including sovereign immunity, to the same extent as the Nation 52 
itself, together with all rights and privileges arising from tribal sovereignty. 53 

 54 
B. Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  The Nation may waive OYLI’s sovereign immunity, 55 
provided that any such waiver is made in conformity with the Nation’s Sovereign 56 
Immunity Ordinance, Chp. 14, Oneida Nation Code of Laws.   57 

 58 
C. The liabilities and obligations of OYLI shall only be enforceable against OYLI, to the 59 
extent permitted by and consistent with any valid waiver of OYLI’s sovereign immunity, 60 
and shall not be enforceable against the Nation or any assets and revenues of the Nation, 61 
except as specifically authorized by the Nation in conformity with the Nation’s laws. 62 

 63 
D. The liabilities and obligations of the Nation shall not be enforceable against OYLI or 64 
its assets, revenues or activities. 65 

 66 
E. The assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of OYLI shall be separate and distinct 67 
from the assets, liabilities, rights and obligations of the Nation.   68 

 69 
Section VI.  Rights, Powers and Authorities 70 
 71 

A. It is the intent of this Charter to authorize OYLI to do all things necessary and 72 
desirable in connection with the fulfillment of its purpose. 73 

 74 
B. OYLI shall have the power in its own name to: 75 

 76 
1. solicit and receive charitable contributions; 77 
 78 
2. receive, collect and own all revenues and pay all expenses arising from or 79 
related to its activities: 80 
 81 
3. purchase, take, receive, lease, obtain by gift of bequest, or otherwise acquire, 82 
own, hold, improve, or use real or personal property, or any interest therein, 83 
wherever situated; 84 
 85 
4. sell, convey, mortgage, pledge, lease, exchange, transfer or otherwise dispose 86 
of or encumber all or any part of its property and assets; 87 
 88 
5. purchase, take, receive, subscribe for, or otherwise acquire, own, hold, vote, 89 
use, employ, sell, mortgage, loan, pledge, or otherwise dispose of, and otherwise 90 
use and deal with, shares or other interests in, or obligations of, corporations, 91 
associations, partnerships of other entities, or individuals, or direct or indirect 92 
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obligations of the United States or of any other government, tribe, state, territory, 93 
governmental district or municipality, or any instrumentality thereof; 94 
 95 
6. make and enter into contracts and incur liabilities, indebtedness and other 96 
obligations by following the Nation’s standard contract approval process 97 
including a review by the Oneida Law Office, Purchasing Department and, as 98 
applicable, the Indian Preference Office; 99 
 100 
7. employ contractors, consultants, agents, managers, advisers and accountants; 101 
 102 
8. loan money, invest and reinvest its funds, and take and hold real and personal 103 
property as security for the payment of funds so loaned or invested; 104 
 105 
9. hire, supervise and terminate employees, consultants and agents, and define 106 
their duties and fix their compensation, provided that all employees shall be 107 
employees of the Nation and governed by the Nation’s personnel policies; 108 
 109 
10. establish and maintain procedures for its day-to-day operations; 110 
 111 
11. make and amend By-laws, consistent with this Charter and the laws of the 112 
Nation and the United States, for the administration and regulation of its affairs; 113 
 114 
12. open and maintain such deposit and securities accounts with banks, 115 
securities intermediaries and other financial institutions, and to deposit therein 116 
any or all revenues, provided that its accounts shall be separate from the accounts 117 
of the Nation and its assets shall not be commingled with other assets of the 118 
Nation; 119 
 120 
13. sue and be sued in its own name, including submitting any matter to 121 
arbitration or alternative dispute resolution, provided that the grant of power 122 
herein to sue and be sued does not in and of itself constitute a waiver of OYLI’s 123 
sovereign immunity; 124 
 125 
14. consent to the jurisdiction of any federal, state or tribal court, and waive the 126 
requirement of the exhaustion of tribal remedies; and 127 
 128 
15. exercise all powers necessary to further its purpose, to the extent not 129 
inconsistent with anything herein. 130 

 131 
Section VII.  Limitations on Powers and Authorities.  OYLI shall not have authority to 132 
exercise any regulatory, legislative or judicial power, and shall not exercise any power or 133 
authority reserved to the Oneida Business Committee or General Tribal Council. 134 
 135 
Section VIII.  Assets.  OYLI’s assets shall consist of all of its revenues, proceeds and earnings 136 
and whatever other assets it develops, generates or acquires as provided in this Charter, and shall 137 
include:  all real and personal property transferred to OYLI by the Nation; all funds which OYLI 138 
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may acquire by grant, loan, gift or other means; all real and personal property which OYLI may 139 
a acquire by grant, loan, gift or other means; and all earnings, interest, dividends, accumulations, 140 
contract rights, claims and other proceeds arising from any listed assets. 141 
 142 
Section IX.  Board of Directors. 143 
 144 

A. Establishment.  There is hereby established a Board of Directors (the “Board”) which 145 
shall manage the activities, affairs, and property of OYLI, and is hereby vested with all 146 
powers necessary to carry out OYLI’s purpose.  The Board shall be responsible for the 147 
development, custody, management and operation of OYLI, for the establishment and 148 
maintenance of effective operating policies, and for the usual and ordinary duties of 149 
oversight and direction.  The Board shall develop By-Laws governing its activities, which 150 
shall be consistent with this Charter and Oneida law. 151 

 152 
B. Number and Appointment.  The Board shall consist of a minimum of five (5) and a 153 
maximum of seven (7) members (each, a “Director”) selected and appointed by the 154 
Oneida Business Committee.  In selecting and appointing Directors, the Oneida Business 155 
Committee shall give due consideration to qualities of industry, responsibility, integrity, 156 
and judgment, and shall have due regard for the need for diversity of experience on the 157 
Board, the need for adequate representation of the areas of expertise required by OYLI, 158 
and the guidelines of organizations which may provide financial assistance to OYLI.   159 

1. A minimum of four (4) Directors shall be local to the area, residing within 160 
Brown or Outagamie counties. 161 

2. A minimum of three (3) Directors shall be enrolled Tribal members of the 162 
Oneida Nation. 163 

3. To the extent possible, in order to create a well-balanced Board, when 164 
appointing Directors, the Oneida Business Committee shall ensure that the Board 165 
contains a minimum of one (1) Director with each of the specialties: management, 166 
business administration, youth services and law. 167 

4. In appointing the first Board, the OYLI work group shall prepare a pool of 168 
candidates for the Oneida Business Committee’s consideration and the Oneida 169 
Business Committee shall make appointments from the said pool. 170 

5. In making all future appointments, the Board may provide the Oneida 171 
Business Committee with three (3) candidates per available Director position and 172 
the Oneida Business Committee shall make appointments from the candidates 173 
provided by the Board. 174 

6. The Directors shall select from amongst themselves the following officer 175 
positions, provided that all officers shall be enrolled Tribal members of the 176 
Oneida Nation: Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer. 177 

 178 
C. Qualifications.  Directors must meet the following qualifications: 179 
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 180 
1. be at least twenty-one (21) years old; 181 
 182 
2. have a high school diploma, high school equivalency degree, or general 183 
education development certificate; 184 
 185 
3. have fundraising experience and either a) experience in management, business 186 
administration, youth services or law, or b) a bachelor’s degree;  187 
 188 
4. have the ability to obtain a fiduciary bond; and 189 
 190 
5. have the ability to exercise sound judgment in matters relating to OYLI’s 191 
purpose. 192 

 193 
D. Term.  Each Director shall serve a term of three (3) years, provided that the initial 194 
Directors, in order to stagger terms, shall be randomly assigned one, two, and three year 195 
terms, in roughly equal proportion, and the terms shall thereafter remain staggered for the 196 
duration of the Board’s existence.  Directors may be re-appointed to successive terms 197 
without limitation. 198 

 199 
E. Removal.  The Oneida Business Committee may remove Directors, with cause as 200 
defined in the OYLI’s By-laws, by a majority vote of the members of the Oneida 201 
Business Committee present and voting at a duly called and held meeting of the Oneida 202 
Business Committee. The Board may adopt By-Laws governing the removal of OYLI 203 
Directors by the Board with or without cause. 204 
 205 
F. Vacancy.  In the event of a vacancy before the expiration of a term, the Oneida 206 
Business Committee shall, in accordance with this Charter and Oneida law, promptly 207 
select and appoint a new Director for the remainder of the unexpired term. 208 
 209 
G. Successor.  Unless he or she resigns or is removed, a Director shall hold office until 210 
his or her successor is appointed and sworn in by the Oneida Business Committee.  In the 211 
event a Director holds over in office beyond the expiration of his or her term, the term of 212 
his successor shall be commensurately shortened, so that the terms of the Directors 213 
remain staggered. 214 
 215 
H. No Personal Liability.  No Director shall be personally liable to any creditor of OYLI 216 
by reason of his or her status as a Director of the Board or by reason of acts done or not 217 
done in his or her capacity as a Director of the Board. 218 
 219 
I. Quorum.  A quorum of the Board shall consist of one-half of the Directors then in 220 
office, plus one.  A quorum is required for the Board to take official action.  A quorum 221 
may be reached by Directors attending the meeting in person or, if preapproved by the 222 
Board, via conference call, Skype or similar technology. 223 
 224 
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J. Regular Meetings.  The Board shall meet at least once every month and may meet as 225 
frequently as the business of the OYLI requires. 226 
 227 
K. Compensation.  The Board shall be a voluntary Board until such time as the Board, 228 
by majority vote of Directors at a duly called meeting, determines that the OYLI is 229 
financially stable enough to pay meeting stipends.  Should the Board vote to pay meeting 230 
stipends, the stipend shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00) per meeting and shall be paid 231 
from the OYLI’s earnings.  The stipend amount may be modified as proposed by the 232 
Board and approved by Oneida Business Committee resolution.  While the Board may 233 
meet as frequently as the business of the OYLI requires, Directors may receive stipends 234 
for a maximum of two (2) meetings per month. 235 
 236 
L. Conflict of Interest.  A Director shall not participate in any Board action that involves 237 
the Director’s personal financial interest.  Each Director shall promptly notify the 238 
Secretary of the Board in writing of any personal financial interest he or she may have in 239 
any matter which may come before the Board or which may relate to the activities of 240 
OYLI.  The Secretary shall enter the notification in the minutes, and the Director shall 241 
not participate in any action relating to the matter or be involved in any manner with the 242 
matter.  As used herein, “personal financial interest” means an interest distinct from other 243 
members of the Nation held by the Director or an immediate family member of the 244 
Director which involves an ownership, income, investment or other beneficial interest in 245 
a business, or relates to any employment or prospective employment.  246 
 247 
M. Records.  The Board shall keep complete and accurate records of all meetings and 248 
actions taken. 249 

 250 
Section X.  Indemnification of Directors and Officers.  OYLI shall indemnify any person  251 
against reasonable expenses actually and necessarily incurred, and against judgments, fines and 252 
amounts paid in settlement, in connection with any action, suit or proceeding in which the person  253 
was or is a party or threatened to be made a party by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a 254 
Director, officer, agent or employee acting on behalf of the OYLI, to the extent that such person 255 
is not otherwise indemnified, except in relation to matters as to which the person shall be 256 
adjudged in such action, suit or proceeding to be liable for gross negligence or intentional 257 
misconduct. 258 
 259 
Section XI.  Reports.   260 
 261 

A. Semi-Annual/Annual and Quarterly Reports.  The Board shall make quarterly reports 262 
to the Oneida Business Committee and annual and semi-annual reports to the Oneida 263 
Business Committee and/or Oneida General Tribal Council based on the reporting 264 
schedule created by the Nation’s Secretary, approved by the Oneida Business Committee 265 
and posted on the Nation’s website.  The reports shall be made in the reporting form 266 
template provided by the Nation’s Secretary. The Board shall approve all reports by 267 
official Board action prior to the report’s submittal to the Oneida Business Committee 268 
and/or the General Tribal Council. 269 

 270 
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 271 
B. Financial Reports.  The Board shall submit quarterly financial reports to the OBC. 272 
Financial reports are subject to annual audits by the Nation’s internal and/or third party 273 
auditors.  They are proprietary and confidential, to be retained by the Secretary's office, 274 
and accessible only to those authorized officers, officials and personnel of the Nation 275 
with a legal or legitimate need to know such information;  provided, however, that the 276 
Board or the Oneida Business Committee may authorize disclosure.  Financial reports 277 
should be structured in an understandable manner consistent with Generally Accepted 278 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), and shall at a minimum include the following: 279 
 280 

1. executive summary;  281 
 282 
2. statement of financial position;  283 
 284 
3. statement of activities; 285 
 286 
4. statement of functional expenses; 287 
 288 
5. statement of cash flows; and  289 
 290 
6. notes to financial statements. 291 

 292 
C. Disclosure Reports.  The Board shall submit disclosure reports to the Oneida 293 
Business Committee by May 31st of each year.  Disclosure reports shall identify any 294 
personal financial interest on the part of any Director which precludes the Director from 295 
participating in actions of the Board or being involved in the operations of OYLI under 296 
section IX(L).  Disclosure reports are proprietary and confidential, to be retained by the 297 
Secretary’s office, and accessible only to those authorized officers, officials and 298 
personnel of the Nation with a legal or legitimate need to know the information. 299 

 300 
Section XII.  Dissolution.  The Oneida Business Committee may dissolve OYLI by a 2/3 301 
majority vote adopting a resolution calling for dissolution.  Upon dissolution, OYLI’s assets 302 
shall be distributed in the following order of priority:  i) perfected security interests of the Oneida 303 
Nation; ii) perfected security interests of third parties; iii) imperfect security interests of the 304 
Oneida Nation and third parties; and iv) all other debts and liabilities.  Upon payment of all debts 305 
and liabilities, all remaining assets shall revert to the Oneida Nation. 306 
 307 
Section XIII.  Miscellaneous. 308 
 309 

A. Effective Date.  This Charter shall become effective upon the date of adoption of a 310 
resolution by the Oneida Business Committee granting this Charter. 311 

 312 
B. Consistency with Constitution.  This Charter shall be construed in a manner 313 
consistent with the Oneida Nation Constitution.  In the event of any inconsistency, the 314 
provisions of the Constitution shall control. 315 

 316 
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C. Consistency with Oneida Nation Laws.  To the extent of any inconsistency between 317 
this Charter and the laws of the Oneida Nation with respect to the activities and 318 
operations of OYLI, this Charter shall control. 319 

 320 
D. Amendment. This Charter may be altered, amended or repealed or a new Charter 321 
adopted by a majority of the entire Board of Directors at a regular or emergency meeting 322 
of the Board of Directors, subject to being approved by the Oneida Business Committee.  323 

 324 
 325 
 326 
This charter, as amended and revised, is hereby approved by the Oneida Business Committee 327 
at a duly called meeting held on _________________, by the Secretary of the Oneida Business 328 
Committee’s signature. 329 
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The Oneida Youth Leadership Institute Board 1 
By-laws 2 
 3 
Article I. Authority 4 
1. Name 5 

(a) The official name of this board is the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute Board referred 6 
to herein as the Board 7 
 8 

2. Authority 9 
(a) By the authority of the Oneida Nation, the Board was established by the Oneida Youth 10 
Leadership Institute’s Charter, which was adopted by Oneida Business Committee 11 
resolution #09-14-16-B , and revised resolution #___________. 12 
(b) The purpose of the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute Board is to: 13 

(1) receive tax-deductible contributions eligible under Internal Revenue Code 14 
Section 170 and 7871(a);  15 
(2) approve and administer the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute’s disbursements; 16 
(3) promote nonprofit activities including, but not limited to, fundraising, 17 
education, training, meetings, workshops, publications and other relevant activities 18 
of the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute Board; and  19 
(4) provide regular reporting to the Oneida Business Committee and General Tribal 20 
Council.  21 

3. Office 22 
(a) The official mailing address of the Board is P.O. Box 365, Oneida, WI 54155. 23 
(b) The physical address of the Board is 909 Packerland Drive, Green Bay, WI 54303. The 24 
physical address of the Board is subject to change from time to time with approval of the 25 
Board. 26 
 27 

4. Membership 28 
(a) The Board shall be composed of a minimum of five (5) and a maximum of seven (7) 29 
directors. In selecting and appointing Directors, the Oneida Business Committee shall give 30 
due consideration to qualities of industry, responsibility, integrity, and judgment, and shall 31 
have due regard for the need for diversity of experience on the Board, the need for adequate 32 
representation of the areas of expertise required by the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute, 33 
and the guidelines of organizations which may provide financial assistance to Oneida 34 
Youth Leadership Institute.   35 

(1) A minimum of four (4) directors shall be local to the area, residing within 36 
Brown or Outagamie counties. 37 
(2) A minimum of three (3) directors shall be enrolled Tribal members of the 38 
Oneida Nation. 39 
(3) To the extent possible, in order to create a well-balanced Board, when 40 
appointing directors, the Oneida Business Committee shall ensure that the Board 41 
contains a minimum of one (1) director with each of the specialties: management, 42 
business administration, youth services and law. 43 
(4) In making all future appointments, the Oneida Business Committee shall make 44 
appointments in accordance with the Boards, Committees and Commissions law. 45 
(5) Each director shall serve a term of three (3) years, provided that the initial 46 
directors, in order to stagger terms, shall be randomly assigned one, two, and three 47 
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year terms, in roughly equal proportion, and the terms shall thereafter remain 48 
staggered for the duration of the Board’s existence.  Directors may be re-appointed 49 
to successive terms without limitation. 50 

(b) Qualifications 51 
(a) To be eligible for appointment to the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute Board,  52 
a candidate shall have the following qualifications: 53 

(a) be at least twenty-one (21) years old; 54 
(b) have a high school diploma, high school equivalency degree, or general 55 
education development certificate; 56 
(c) have fundraising experience and either (1) experience in management, 57 
business administration, youth services or law, or (2) a bachelor’s degree;  58 
(d) have the ability to obtain a fiduciary bond; and 59 
(e) have the ability to exercise sound judgment in matters relating to 60 
OYLI’s purpose. 61 

(c) Vacancies, Appointments, Resignations, Suspensions, and Removals  62 
(a) Vacancies and Appointments.  If any director dies, resigns, is removed, 63 
incapacitated, or is otherwise unable to serve, the OBC will review past applications 64 
for possible candidate appointments. 65 
(b) Resignation.  Directors wishing to resign may do so by submitting a written 66 
resignation at any regular Board meeting. 67 
(c) Removal.  Removal of directors may occur by the Oneida Business Committee 68 
in accordance with the Removal law or by the Board in accordance with the Board’s 69 
charter.  All removals of directors by the Board shall further the purpose and policy 70 
of the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute.  Removals by the Board may be with or 71 
without cause, where the following creates cause for removal: 72 

(a) failure to attend three (3) regularly scheduled meetings, whether 73 
excused or unexcused, within a six (6) month period; 74 
(b) intentional misuse of funds; 75 
(c) alcohol abuse while performing official responsibilities or illegal use of 76 
drugs at any time; 77 
(d) failure to continue to meet the qualifications for serving as director; 78 
and/or 79 
(e) committing a felony while serving as director. 80 

(d) Subcommittees.  A subcommittee may be appointed by the chairperson of the Board to 81 
carry out specific duties, when deemed necessary. The subcommittee shall serve until the 82 
duties with which this subcommittee has been charged are completed, and a report has been 83 
accepted by the Board.  84 
(e) Board Duties.  The duties of the Board include, but are not limited to, the following: 85 

(1) At the commencement of taking office, new directors shall complete the Board 86 
Confidentiality Statement and the Non-Disclosure Agreement and provide the 87 
completed forms to the Chairperson. Upon submission of forms to the Chairperson, 88 
the director may vote on Board actions.  89 
(2) Develop and adopt policy relating to the management and administration of the 90 
Oneida Youth Leadership Institute. 91 
(3) Oversee the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute’s distributions. 92 
(4) Participate in training including orientation, board training and workshops 93 
pertaining to investing, fiduciary, and relevant Oneida laws. 94 
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(5) Oversee the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute’s fund investment activity and 95 
portfolio management.   96 
(6) Participate in Oneida Youth Leadership Institute fundraising activities, 97 
including a personal financial contribution to annual fundraising campaigns. 98 
(7) Restrict all use of the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute’s donations to public 99 
purposes that promote leadership qualities in Oneida youth and, in all instances, 100 
prevent such donations from being used to contribute towards lobbying or political 101 
campaign activity, regardless of the purpose. 102 
(8) Acknowledge all donations to the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute by 103 
providing a written acknowledgment of gratitude to each donor. 104 
(9) Ensure that the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute’s financials are audited 105 
annually and that findings of such audits are available to donors upon request.  106 
(10) Make all reports made to the Oneida Business Committee and/or the General 107 
Tribal Council available to donors upon request. 108 

 109 
5. Stipends.  Board stipends shall be one hundred dollars ($100.00) per meeting and shall be paid 110 
from the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute’s earnings. While the Board may meet as frequently 111 
as the business of the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute requires, directors may only receive 112 
stipends for a maximum of two (2) meetings per month. 113 
 114 
6. Trainings and Conferences.  The Board may name required trainings and conferences required 115 
for directors to responsibly serve the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute. 116 

 117 
Article II. Officers 118 
1. Officer Selection.  The directors shall select from amongst themselves, at the first Regular 119 
meeting following annual appointment, the following officer positions, provided that all officers 120 
shall be enrolled Tribal members of the Oneida Nation: Chairman, Secretary and Treasurer. 121 

(a) If an officer position is vacated, the Board shall hold an interim election to fill the office 122 
for the balance of the year. 123 
(b) Nomination of directors for officer positions may only be made by a director present, 124 
physically or electronically, at a duly called meeting of the Board. 125 
(c) Any director nominated and/or elected to an officer position may communicate 126 
acceptance of such nomination/election via written correspondence, which may include 127 
electronic communications such as e-mail and facsimile. 128 
 129 

2. Officer Positions.  The Board shall elect directors to the following officer positions: 130 
(a) Chairman 131 

The Chairman shall call and preside over meetings, appoint subcommittees as 132 
needed, oversee all Board activities and schedule special meetings.  133 

 134 
(b) Treasurer 135 

(a) The Treasurer acts with the same authority as the chairperson in the absence of 136 
the President. 137 
(b) The Treasurer shall ensure the accuracy of the Oneida Youth Leadership 138 
Institute’s financials. 139 
(c) The Treasurer shall coordinate with the Trust/Enrollment Committee as 140 
necessary. 141 
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(d) The Treasurer is responsible for fulfilling all of the Board’s financial reporting 142 
requirements, including the annual audit. 143 

(c) Secretary 144 
(a) The Secretary is responsible for all of the Board’s record keeping, minutes and 145 
correspondence. 146 
(b) In the absence of the President and Treasurer, the Secretary may call and preside 147 
over meetings. 148 
(c) The Secretary is responsible for fulfilling all of the Board’s non-financial 149 
reporting requirements. 150 
 151 

3. Budgetary and Travel Sign-Off Authority.  The Board, as a whole, shall approve the Board’s 152 
budget and, should the Board grow to be able hire its own staff, review and approve any budgets 153 
developed by staff.  All travel and expenses incurred by the Board is required to be approved by 154 
the Board in advance of incurring such travel and expense costs.  Travel and expenses specifically 155 
budgeted in the budget approved by the Board do not require separate approval by the Board. 156 
 157 
4. Personnel.  Until the Board has sufficient earnings to hire its own staff, the Nation’s Grants 158 
Manager shall be the Board’s Executive Manager.   159 

(a) Until the Board is able to hire its own staff:  160 
(a) the Board shall receive approval from the Executive Manager’s supervisor as 161 
to the scope of services/work hours he/she has available to contribute towards the 162 
Board; 163 
(2) the Executive Manager shall report to the Board for direction in regards to 164 
projects assigned by the Board; and 165 
(3) the Executive Manager shall coordinate use of other employees of the Nation 166 
with their respective supervisors as needed for Board assignments.  An employee 167 
of the Nation may not work on Board activities until his/her supervisor has 168 
approved the scope/time of the employee’s contribution. 169 

(b) All employees of the Nation contributing towards Board initiatives shall at all times 170 
remain employees of the Nation and shall at all times be governed by the Nation’s 171 
employment laws, policies, and procedures.   172 
 173 

Article III. Meetings 174 
1. Regular Meetings.  The Board shall meet at least once every month and may meet as frequently 175 
as the business of the Oneida Youth Leadership Institute may require.  The Board shall establish 176 
the time and place of regular meetings and may amend the time and place of regular meetings as 177 
needed. 178 
 179 
2. Emergency/Special Meetings.  The Chairman may call Emergency/Special meetings. There 180 
shall be a minimum of twenty-four (24) hour verbal and/or written notice to all directors of any 181 
emergency and/or special meeting.  A meeting satisfying this notice requirement and meeting 182 
quorum constitutes a duly called meeting. 183 
 184 
3. Quorum.  A quorum of the Board shall consist of one-half of the Directors then in office, plus 185 
one.  A quorum is required for the Board to take official action.  A quorum may be reached by 186 
directors attending the meeting in person or, if preapproved by the Board, via conference call, 187 
Skype or similar technology. 188 
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 189 
4. Order of Business.  The format of the Board’s agendas shall be as prescribed by the Secretary 190 
based on the following order of business: 191 

(a) Call Meeting to Order 192 
(b) Approve Agenda 193 
(c) Approve Minutes 194 
(d) Attorney Business 195 
(e) Old Business 196 
(f) New Business 197 
(g) Other Business 198 
(h) Adjournment 199 

 200 
5. Voting 201 

(a) Voting shall be in accordance with Robert’s Rule of Order. 202 
(b) The President may not vote except in the event of a tie. 203 
(c) Each director shall have one (1) vote. 204 
(d) In the event a Board decision is needed outside of a duly called meeting, the Executive 205 
Manager or an officer of the Board may conduct a poll of the directors by e-mail, provided 206 
that the Board shall accept the results of the e-poll at the next available duly called meeting. 207 
(e) In cases where a conflict of interest exists, the conflicted director shall recuse 208 
themselves from the action, or the Board can vote by a majority of the quorum present to 209 
exclude a director they believe has a conflict.  210 
 211 

6. Parliamentary Procedure.  All meetings shall be conducted in accordance with the current 212 
edition of ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER, in all cases to which they are applicable, unless they 213 
are inconsistent with these By-laws and/or any special rules of order the Board may adopt. 214 

 215 
Article IV. Reporting 216 
1. Agenda Items.  The Board shall maintain agenda items in an identified and consistent format. 217 
 218 
2. Minutes and Attachments. The Board shall type minutes in a consistent format designed to 219 
generate the most informative record of the meetings of the Board. Handouts, reports, memoranda, 220 
and the like may be attached to the minutes and agenda, or may be kept separately, provided that 221 
all materials can be identified based on the meeting in which they were presented.   222 
 223 
3. Reporting.  The Board shall make quarterly reports to the Oneida Business Committee and 224 
annual and semi-annual reports to the Oneida Business Committee for inclusion in the General 225 
Tribal Council reporting, based on the reporting schedule created by the Nation’s Secretary, 226 
approved by the Oneida Business Committee, and posted on the Nation’s website.  The reports 227 
shall be made in the reporting form template provided by the Nation’s Secretary. The Board shall 228 
approve all reports by official Board action prior to the report’s submittal to the Oneida Business 229 
Committee and/or the General Tribal Council. 230 

 231 
 232 
 233 
 234 
 235 
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A. Financial Reports: A financial report shall be quarterly to the Oneida Business 236 
Committee.  Financial reports should be structured in an understandable manner 237 
consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP), and shall at a 238 
minimum include the following: 239 
 240 

(a) Executive Summary 241 
(b) Statement of financial position  242 
(c) Statement of activities 243 
(d) Statement of functional expenses 244 
(e) Statement of cash flows 245 
(f) Notes to financial statements  246 

 247 
Article V. Amendments 248 
 249 
1. Amendments to By-Laws - These By-Laws may be altered, amended or repealed or new By-250 

Laws adopted by a majority of the entire Board of Directors at a regular or emergency 251 
meetings of the Board of Directors, subject to being approved by the 252 

  Oneida Business Committee.   253 
 254 
 255 
 256 
These by-laws, as amended and revised, are hereby approved by the Oneida Business Committee 257 
at a duly called meeting held on _____________________________, by the Secretary of the 258 
Oneida Business Committee’s signature. 259 
 260 
_________________________________________ 261 
Lisa Liggins, Secretary 262 
Oneida Business Committee 263 
 264 
 265 
 266 
Approved by the Interim Board              08-30-16    267 
 268 
Approved by Oneida Business Committee:         09-14-16         269 
 270 
First Amendment Approved by the Board:    __04-17-24 271 
 272 
First Amendment Approved by Oneida Business Committee: __________ 273 
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Business Committee Agenda Request

1. Meeting Date Requested: 06/12/24

2. General Information:
Session: ☒ Open ☐ Executive – must qualify under §107.4-1.

Justification: Choose reason for Executive.

3. Supporting Documents:
☐ Bylaws

☐ Contract Document(s)

☒ Correspondence

☐ Draft GTC Notice

☐ Draft GTC Packet

☐ E-poll results/back-up

☐ Fiscal Impact Statement

☐ Law

☐ Legal Review

☐ Minutes

☐ MOU/MOA

☐ Petition

☐ Presentation

☐ Report

☐ Resolution

☐ Rule (adoption packet)

☐ Statement of Effect

☐ Travel Documents

☐ Other: Describe

4. Budget Information:
☐ Budgeted ☐ Budgeted – Grant Funded ☐ Unbudgeted

☒ Not Applicable ☐ Other: Describe

5. Submission:

Authorized Sponsor: Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Primary Requestor:  Brooke Doxtator

Additional Requestor: (Name, Title/Entity)

Additional Requestor:  (Name, Title/Entity)

Submitted By: BDOXTAT1

Post one (1) vacancy - Oneida Land CommissionPost one (1) vacancy - Oneida Land Commission
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Oneida Nation 
Government Administrative Office 

PO Box 365    Oneida, WI 54155-0365 
oneida-nsn.gov 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

 
 

Memorandum 
TO:  Oneida Business Committee 
 
FROM:  Brooke Doxtator, BCC Supervisor  
 
DATE:  May 30, 2024 
 
RE:  Post one (1) vacancy – Oneida Land Commission 

 

Background 
There is a vacancy on the Oneida Land Commission that needs to be posted. The vacancy is 
due to the resignation of Jennifer Hill which went into effect on May 28, 2024. The vacancy 
is for term ending July 31, 2025. 
 
According to the Oneida Land Commission bylaws section 1-5.c.2. 

“Unexpired Terms. Vacancies in unexpired terms shall be filled by appointment by the 
Oneida Business Committee pursuant to the Boards, Committees and Commissions 
law for the remainder of the unexpired term.” 

 
Action requested: 
Post one (1) vacancy for the Oneida Land Commission. 
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Business Committee Agenda Request

1. Meeting Date Requested: 06/12/24

2. General Information:
Session: ☒ Open ☐ Executive – must qualify under §107.4-1.

Justification: Choose reason for Executive.

3. Supporting Documents:
☐ Bylaws

☐ Contract Document(s)

☒ Correspondence

☐ Draft GTC Notice

☐ Draft GTC Packet

☐ E-poll results/back-up

☐ Fiscal Impact Statement

☐ Law

☐ Legal Review

☐ Minutes

☐ MOU/MOA

☐ Petition

☐ Presentation

☐ Report

☐ Resolution

☐ Rule (adoption packet)

☐ Statement of Effect

☐ Travel Documents

☐ Other: Describe

4. Budget Information:
☐ Budgeted ☐ Budgeted – Grant Funded ☐ Unbudgeted

☒ Not Applicable ☐ Other: Describe

5. Submission:

Authorized Sponsor: Lisa Liggins, Secretary

Primary Requestor:  Brooke Doxtator

Additional Requestor: (Name, Title/Entity)

Additional Requestor:  (Name, Title/Entity)

Submitted By: BDOXTAT1

Post one (1) vacancy - Oneida Nation Arts BoardPost one (1) vacancy - Oneida Nation Arts Board
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Oneida Nation 
Government Administrative Office 

PO Box 365    Oneida, WI 54155-0365 
oneida-nsn.gov 

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. 

 
 

Memorandum 
TO:  Oneida Business Committee 
 
FROM:  Brooke Doxtator, BCC Supervisor  
 
DATE:  June 3, 2024 
 
RE:  Post one (1) vacancy – Oneida Nation Arts Board 

 

Background 
There is a vacancy on the Oneida Nation Arts Board that needs to be posted. The vacancy is 
due to the resignation of Stacie Cutbank which went into effect June 3, 2024. The vacancy is 
for term ending March 31, 2025. 
 
According to the Oneida Nation Arts Board bylaws section 1-5.c. 

“Vacancies. Vacancies for any reason on the Board shall be filled for the remainder of 
the term through appointment by the Oneida Business Committee in accordance 
with the Boards, Committees and Commissions law. 

 
Action requested: 
Post one (1) vacancy for the Oneida Nation Arts Board. 
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